SHOULD SIKHS FORGIVE AND FORGET: LET GOD BE THE JUDGE
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Recently an issue was raised by some friends on Facebook about the 1984 riots in New Delhi and the killing of about 3,000 Sikhs. The discussion was about Sikhs being a forgiving people, and since the incident occurred more than 34 years ago, Sikhs should forgive and forget. Being a former Sikh, whose family is all Sikh from father’s side and Hindu from mother’s side but who converted to Christianity more than 45 years ago, I would like to address the issue of Sikh forgiveness and forgetting, and whether God has any say in the matter.

First, let me provide the narrative that passes for the accepted and ‘official’ version of causes and the events that took place in 1984, leading to the massacre of innocent Sikhs in Delhi, the capital of India.

Most of the Sikhs live in the Punjab state in India. During the early 1980s Punjab state had become violent due to the demands for a separate state (the Sikh party known as the Akali Dal maintained that the demand was for autonomy and not for a separate Sikh state to be known as Khalistan) by an armed movement of a small section of the Sikhs, led by Jarnail Singh Bhindranwale. Bhindranwale’s followers had murdered about 165 Hindus and Nirankari Sikhs (a sect of the Sikhs), and about 40 Sikhs opposed to Bhindranwale’s movement. It is estimated that total of more than 400 had died in the violent incidents with nearly 1,200 injured.

The holiest of Sikh shrines is the Golden Temple (known as Harmandir Sahib) in Amritsar, Punjab, India. In July 1982, the President of the Akali Dal invited Bhindranwale to take up residence in the Golden Temple Complex with some of his followers in order to escape arrest, as the authorities would be reluctant to enter a sacred place with arms. Later Bhindranwale hoarded arms in the complex and made it his headquarters. The practice of his followers then was to commit murders and other acts of violence and flee to the sacred Temple complex to evade arrest.

The situation could no longer be tolerated by the Indian government. Prime Minister Indira Gandhi launched Operation Blue Star in which the Indian military between June 1 and 8, 1984, attacked Bhindranwale and militants with him in the Harmandir complex, including one former general Shahbeg Singh. Bhindranwale and many of the militants were killed, along with civilians who had been in the complex for worship, or as employees. According to official figures, the Indian army casualties were 92 dead and 287 injured. According to the government issued White Paper, 554 militants and civilians died and 121 were injured. 

According to Khushwant Singh (A History of the Sikhs, Vol 2, p. 364), Indira Gandhi’s son Rajiv Gandhi put the army deaths at over 700 (which he later retracted). Most eye-witness accounts put the civilian and militant dead at between 1,500 - 5000, including many innocent women and children pilgrims. A large number of those captured were killed in cold blood.

Then four months later, on October 31, 1984, two of Prime Minister Indira Gandhi’s Sikh body guards Beant Singh and Satwant Singh shot her dead. Immediately, in response anti-Sikh mobs, consisting mainly of Congress Party members murdered around 3,000 Sikhs in Delhi, Kanpur, Haryana, Madhya Pradesh and other parts of India according to official Indian government figures. However, independent sources put the death toll of Sikhs at 8,000 - 17,000. Some mass graves were later found in the neighboring Haryana state.

That is the official version of events leading up to 1984 and in 1984. However, according to my very reliable sources, this is the actual version of events.

I was in India till August 1981. That’s when I left for the USA to pursue my higher studies. Till then, though I had been living mainly outside of Punjab as a MBA student and in Mumbai for a few months for a job, by that time I had begun to feel the effects of the violence in Punjab due to the activities of Jarnail Singh Bhindranwale. He had been advocating ‘pure’ Sikhism of the gurus, renouncing modernism, keeping long hair and abstaining from eating meat. After my conversion to Christianity in 1972-1973 I had cut off my long hair. I no longer wore a turban or follow any of the tenets of Sikhism. Thus, Bhindranwale’s brand of Sikhism had made me feel uncomfortable, like many other Sikhs who had cut off their hair and ate meat. 

But it is generally well known that Bhindranwale was propped up as a Sikh religious leader by Indira Gandhi and her Congress party. In Punjab state, two main parties, the Congress Party and the Akali Dal, have vied for power for decades. Since the Akali Dal is mainly a Sikh religious party, the Congress Party tried to divide the Sikh support for the Akali Dal by setting up a rival religious leader who would support the Congress Party in elections. The Punjab Sikh politician from the Congress Party, Giani Zail Singh, Chief Minister of Punjab for 5 years from 1972-1977, and President of India from 1982-1987, was instrumental in setting up Bhindranwale as a religious leader. In some cases, when Bhindranwale was suspected of involvement in some murders, he had been set free ‘for lack of evidence.’

Indira Gandhi had been looking for a Sikh leader for this purpose at least since 1973. In this regard I have a personal anecdote to share. I was involved in student disturbances at Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi (IITD) for which I had been suspended from college for one year. After that at the invitation of the IITD Director, R.N. Dogra, whose wife was a personal friend of the prime minister, Indira Gandhi visited IITD. I believe I was being looked at for being set up as a Sikh leader, as I had demonstrated willingness to sacrifice myself for a cause during the IITD disturbances. I would be expected to support the Congress Party and divide the Sikh support for the Akali Dal. The idea was very quickly dropped as I showed no inclination to follow Indira Gandhi. I have never been interested in politics because of my religious beliefs.

Bhindranwale had very little formal education. Though the Congress had set him up as a counterweight to the Akalis among the Sikhs, he had very little electoral success. In 1979, his candidates contested 40 seats in the 140 members state legislature but won only 4 seats. 

There has always been an undercurrent of dissatisfaction among the Sikhs about economic, social and political conditions in Punjab. Sikhs have felt discriminated against because the state of Punjab received no share of public sector industries, thus giving very little employment opportunities in manufacturing. Though initially the Akalis opposed Bhindranwale because of his Congress Party connections, in 1982 they joined forces with him and in August 1982 and launched an agitation termed the Dharam Yudh Mocha (battle for righteousness) to demand more autonomy for Punjab state. The movement proved to be popular. 

Indira Gandhi had been negotiating in bad faith with the Akalis about the autonomy and other demands of the Sikhs. Murders and violence by Bhindranwale’s supporters continued and then Bhindranwale took shelter in the Golden Temple complex and armed himself and his supporters to elude capture. The situation got out of hand, which Indira Gandhi could no longer control. So in June 1984 she took action, sending in the military to flush out or kill Bhindranwale in Operation Blue Star as already described.

While there was strong reaction from the Sikh community, the situation was quickly brought under control militarily by the central government of Indira Gandhi, by searching villages for arms among the Sikhs.The Akali leaders were incarcerated. Indira Gandhi had the Golden Temple repaired at government expense to assuage Sikh feelings. On demands of the Sikh priests, by October 1, 1984, the army departed from the Temple Complex.

The negotiations between the Akalis and Indira Gandhi about the question of autonomy for Punjab State had been conducted in bad faith during the early 1980s. The reason was that she had old scores to settle with the Akalis. Here are the causes, and what was subsequently planned:

1.  Jathedar Santokh Singh of Delhi (of the Gurudwara Management Committee known as the Sharomani Gurudwara Parbandhak Committee - SGPC) had a good standing with prime minister Indira Gandhi (a Hindu) because he always delivered the Sikh vote in Delhi to the Congress Party. Some highly valued lands historically attached to the Gurdwara Sis Ganj in Delhi where a police post was located which Hindu merchants wanted were vacated by the persistent efforts of Santokh Singh. He was threatened by the Hindus saying there will be bloodshed for this. He replied that we, Sikhs, can deal with bloodshed. That rankled in the minds of Indira Gandhi’s followers and other Hindus.

 2. Then on June 26, 1975, Indira Gandhi had declared an emergency all over India when her rule was threatened, which lasted for 18 months. The Akalis took advantage of the situation and started protest marches to demand that the city of Chandigarh be given to Punjab State. But barbarous deeds were being committed by her son Sanjay Gandhi and the coterie of friends around him such as forced sterilizations of even in some cases young bachelors. The Akalis passively resisted the emergency. But through the good offices of Jathedar Santokh Singh and SGPC president Gurcharan Singh Tohra, the Akali leaders had a meeting with Indira Gandhi who told them that she would accede to all their demands if they did not cause any disturbances during the emergency. They agreed to this.

3.  Then the Akali leaders came back to Punjab and held discussions among themselves. The Jutts (a caste in Punjab, mainly agriculturalists) among them, because of caste rivalries did not want Jathedar Santokh Singh (a Chhimba by caste, whose main profession was dyeing and printing fabrics) to get the credit and did not keep the agreement. Indira Gandhi subsequently lost power and it rankled in her mind as she felt she had been betrayed after an agreement was made. She kept it in mind to teach the Sikhs a lesson for having betrayed her.

4.  She regained power in 1980 and then gathered together a group around her who all planned to teach the Sikhs a lesson. The list included Jagdish Tytler, HKL Bhagat, Sajjan Kumar, Dharam Das shastri, Kamal Nath, Vasant Sathe, Lalit Makan, Babu Ram Sharma, Mangat Ram Singal, Dr. Ashok Kumar, Sukhan Lal Sood, Jagdish Chander Tokas, Faiz Muhammed, Balwant Khokhar, Mahendra, Ratan and others.

5. Then the violent events of the early 1980s occurred, and in 1984 Operation Blue Star was carried out. By October 1, 1984, when the military vacated the Golden Temple Complex, the violence was under control. Though the Sikhs had reacted strongly to attack on the Golden Temple, violence had not broken out. Indira Gandhi and the coterie of young Congress Party lieutenants had already planned to teach the Sikhs in Delhi a lesson. 

6.  The plan was to murder Sikhs when they were gathered together in Gurpurab (celebrating the Guru’s birthday in early November) during (Jaloos, or procession), Nagarkirtan (singing of hymns in procession) from Gurdwara Sisganj to Gurdwara Rakab Ganj through narrow streets where there would be no means of escape. Literally tens of thousands and possibly hundreds of thousands of Sikhs could be going in procession through the narrow streets, singing hymns all along the route.

 7.  Before October 31, 1984, They had already started working on neutralizing Sikh police officers who carried guns by giving them desk duties and disarming them.

8.  They prepared kerosene trucks to be ready to set fire to houses of Sikhs and burn people alive or flush them out of their homes and kill them. Weapons were also made ready for the massacre.

9.  Beant Singh, a Sikh, was Indira Gandhi’s close confidant and bodyguard whom she trusted and took wherever she went for her night escapades, drinking and spending nights at various places. He was the one who came to learn of the plot in his dealings with the group that had gathered around Indira Gandhi. [She could trust Sikhs for their loyalty and bravery to protect her as they are willing to sacrifice themselves.] As her confidant he was allowed only to carry a pistol. He could not carry a machine gun.

10.  Satwant Singh, another Sikh, was with the commandos who were appointed to protect her. He carried a machine gun. 

11.  Giani Kehar Singh was the giani 9priest) of the Gurdwara. Beant Singh took Kehar Singh into his confidence and told him about the plot and discussed about preparations to defend themselves. Giani Kehar Singh informed Beant Singh that all the congregation is with Indira Gandhi’s Congress Party. If he shared the plot with anyone of them, Indira Gandhi would be informed and he would be arrested. So, if anything could be done, Beant Singh and Satwant Singh would have to do it themselves and kill Indira Gandhi. Beant Singh took Satwant Singh into confidence and decided to kill Indira Gandhi before the plot to kill tens of thousands or possibly a hundred thousand Sikhs in Delhi could be carried out. 

12.  On October 31, 1984, after Beant Singh shot her with his pistol and Satwant used his machine gun to kill her, the scheme to massacre Sikhs had to be carried out immediately as the assassination was now an excuse to do so.  

13.  So the conspirators called people from outside Delhi and prepared those who were in Delhi to carry out the massacre of as many Sikhs as they could. It is estimated that in Delhi alone about 6,000 - 8,000 Sikhs were horribly murdered, with tires doused with kerosene thrown around their necks and set on fire. Sikh women were gang-raped and about Rs 3 billion ($264 million in the 1984 Dollar-Rupee exchange rate) of Sikh property looted and businesses destroyed. In other states, trains were stopped, Sikhs pulled out and murdered. Estimates of the number of Sikhs murdered all over the country range from 8,000 - 17,000.

14.  Giani Zail Singh, a Sikh, was president at that time and was on a trip abroad to Yemen. He returned immediately and was put virtually under house arrest. Khushwant Singh, a prominent author, informed him of what was happening in Delhi (he himself sought refuge in the Swedish Embassy) and asked Giani Zail Singh to take some action. But he informed Khushwant Singh that he was virtually under arrest and could take no action.

Those are the facts as I know them about the 1984 Sikh killings in Delhi and other parts of India. Indira Gandhi was not killed for vengeance for Operation Blue Star four months earlier. She was killed because premeditated murder of tens of thousands, and possible a hundred thousand Sikhs was planned, and actions were being taken to carry out the plans within a few weeks. But Indira Gandhi’s Sikh bodyguard got wind of the plans and carried out the assassination before the plans could be put into motion. The plans were immediately carried out after the assassination anyway.

In the two operations, Operation Blue Star and the killings after Indira Gandhi’s assassination, an estimated 10,000 - 20,000 Sikhs were killed. Very few of the culprits have been brought to justice. Some of the ring leaders went on to hold high offices, and some still hold the highest offices in their states. Should such deeds be forgiven and forgotten by the Sikhs?

Let’s go back in history now to see if such deeds should simply be forgiven and forgotten, and if God has some say in the matter.

Treatment of Sikhs Since 1919

Sikhs enrolled in disproportionately large numbers in the British Indian Army and fought the Germans in both World Wars. Germans do not forget such things and target those who fought against them, even though the war may be over.

There are two kinds of Germans in the world: those who live in Germany and those who live in other countries having assumed the common names of the citizens of those countries. The second category I call German Masqueraders. In fact, German masqueraders in the world number more than the Germans living in Germany. Most German masqueraders live in European countries where they look like the citizens of the countries and have lived there for centuries. This should be kept in mind as I analyze what happened historically.

Till 1998, I thought Germany, the USA and the democracies of northwestern Europe were allies. Then in late 1998 or early 1999 I discovered that the Germans were not allies at all but had been clandestinely carrying out a campaign to destroy the USA, British Commonwealth nations, the democracies of Northwestern Europe as well as the Jews starting in the early 1960s. They had also been carrying out a vendetta against all peoples who had fought against them in both world wars.

Vendetta against the Sikhs was carried out almost immediately after World War I ended in November 1918. On April 13, 1919, a German masquerader named General Dyer murdered at least 379 unarmed Sikhs, gathered for the Sikh New Year celebration, and wounded more than 1,000 in the Jallianwala Bagh Massacre.   

German vendetta against those who fought them in World War 2 has been even more vicious. They got an opportunity against the Sikhs, Hindus and Muslim Punjabis in about two years after the end of the War. India was given independence on August 15, 1947. Due to the partition of India into India and Pakistan, much violence between the Muslims, Hindus and Sikhs was anticipated, and could have been easily prevented. It was prevented in Bengal, but was allowed to go on unabated in Punjab in India and Pakistan by the German masquerader Lord Louis Mountbatten, where Muslims, Sikhs and Hindus massacred each other to the tune of 500,000 - 800,000 people.   

The Germans through German masqueraders in Britain were behind schemes in assisting men like Idi Amin, Saddam Hussein and such dictators to come to power and use them to destroy their own peoples through mass-murders. They were also behind helping terrorists like Yasser Arafat to rise to power and commit worldwide acts of terrorism against Jews, the British and the American peoples.    

Then we discovered the existence of German masqueraders in all white countries of the world, particularly in America, British Commonwealth nations and France. Such masqueraders had been able to take over the economies of these countries and had reduced much of the population of Israelite background to virtual economic slavery. They helped Germany loot the economies of Israelite and all white countries of Europe by buying German goods and services so that Germany was able to provide welfare to its citizens from cradle to grave.     

They were behind the millions of abortions, the hundred thousand medical murders annually and the disappearance of millions of children, men and women, including clandestinely burning many alive in electric crematoriums. They were the serial killers who terrorized American and British populations. They were engaged in marrying and divorcing men and women of Israelite origin, who were then forced into poverty as single parents caring for a child or two. They had also obtained most of the jobs in welfare departments of state and local governments [I witnessed this in my job in the State of Florida’s welfare department] and denied benefits to people of Israelite origin or made it extremely difficult and a harrowing experience for them continuously to obtain benefits, while helping masqueraders and their allies easily get the benefits.  

They orchestrated the hippie movement in order to destroy the marriage institution as much as possible in Israelite countries.

They were behind impregnating young teens and having children which ruined their lives and were behind forcing many interracial marriages with threats delivered electronically. They orchestrated the immigration of millions of people from other races into Israelite countries so that Israelite countries would be racially mixed and they themselves could gloat that they were the fairest people on earth and use that as evidence for their delusion that they only are divine, and the rest of humanity is like cats, dogs and mosquitoes with no future life. They also murdered Israelites with the ruddiest appearance so that they would come out as the fairest looking in the world.  

They tried their best to control the population of Israelites by preventing many from marrying, with threats delivered electronically in direct hearing of the people (a capability they seem to have developed by 1960), particularly the good-looking ones; forcing women into prostitution, forcing others into drug use and homelessness, besides abortions and the disappearance of many. In effect there is a missing half a generation of Israelites in America and Britain, as well as France. Besides controlling growth of population among Israelites, the other goal was to darken them racially.

They allowed terrorists to immigrate into our countries, who committed terrorist acts, helped them earn money by setting up businesses and use those earnings t to finance recruitment for terrorist organizations in their countries to commit acts of terrorism against American, British and Jewish peoples worldwide.

All the immigrants came fully committed to the hostile nations led by German masqueraders and their allies within our nations to work to impoverish by discrimination and destroy people of Israelite origin. The immigrant doctors committed medical murders in our countries. All these immigrants bought German goods and services and products of companies headed by masqueraders to enrich Germany.

The German masqueraders with the help of immigrants they allowed into the USA had created a hostile nation within the nation which was discovered around 1999 - 2000 with the murders and other hostile acts it was engaged in. Then around 2000-2001 I realized that it was very easy to murder people by poisoning them by giving wrong prescriptions or in restaurants and visualized a potential disaster for our nations. So, I prayed to God to intervene and save Israelite nations from this potential catastrophe. After my prayer, apparently the hostile nation sent out a call to murder as many Israelites as possible by poisoning them or by any other means. The main targets were IT professionals, scientists, serving and retired top military officers, statesmen, business and political leaders. The order also went out for spouses who had married Israelite spouses to murder them and their own children. THESE ORDERS WERE CARRIED OUT. But God answered my prayers and intervened to prevent these attempts from succeeding. This intervention probably saved tens of millions of lives in America alone, and probably additional millions in British Commonwealth nations. If the attempt had succeeded, America and British Commonwealth nations could have been very easily defeated in a war almost immediately.

My Personal Experiences with the Germans and their Allies

I came to the USA in 1981 to do my PhD in marketing and international business and have had many personal experiences with the German masqueraders. When I saw the U.S. economy in bad shape, I diagnosed the problem to be the so-called ‘free trade’ in which everyone was free to sell their goods and services in the USA while denying complete access to U.S. products and services. Germany and Japan were the primary beneficiaries of this free trade. I also developed a Model of Economic Development and International Trade. But German masqueraders could not have a professor ranting about getting rid of free trade, because it would spoil Germany’s and their party. So they orchestrated my leaving the PhD program. 

Later I learnt that I was deliberately prevented from getting a decent job. Even when I went into business in development and marketing of software, the German masqueraders interfered in my relationship with my business partner so that they succeeded in destroying my business and passed on my idea of getting into IT Tech services to their allies in India. All the big IT services firms in India such as Tata Consultancy Services (TCS), WIPRO, Infosys, HCL, Cognizant, Tech Mahindra etc, with hundreds of billions of dollars in market capitalization were based on my original idea. This was facilitated by the company Global Crossing investing about $2 billion in laying cable through the oceans, making broad band connection between India and the USA and Europe available, and going bankrupt in the process. 

As if that was not enough, recently, these Indian IT companies paid out millions (perhaps hundreds of millions) of dollars to people who had made attempts on my life in the USA. 

I was prevented from growing my Accounting and Consulting business by the hostile nation threatening me with frivolous law suits by my clients. As a result, I had to close my practice. Till my $12.76/hour job with the State of Florida, the longest I had ever held a job in my entire life was less than a year. And that too was a job with a fake inventory company getting paid near minimum wage. German masqueraders tried to have me fired from that job starting within two months and harassed me throughout the job. Finally, after about seven and a half years they succeeded. They got me fired from the next job (a $18.36/hour job) in one year and seven months. Currently I am unemployed.

I was constantly harassed in my daily life, not being allowed to sleep properly at night for nearly two decades. I am still harassed virtually daily in many ways. Then I realized that hundreds, if not thousands, of attempts had been made on my life in America in every possible way. These attempts included actual numerous poisonings; attempts to have me shot numerous times, torn apart by dogs, large males getting involved in rough and tumble wrestling near me to embroil me and then hurt me. One even tried to break my back so that I would be paralyzed for life. Doctors and nurses tried to infect me with the HIV virus or use high energy X-rays to damage my heart or kill me. They have had big rigs try to run me over on the highway while traveling in my car. They tried to drive me mad by denying everything that people were doing to me saying I was paranoid and was imagining all this, and everyone turning away their faces from me. That was the reason they asked me to see a psychologist who referred me to a psychiatrist who pronounced that ‘my judgment had been compromised’ (meaning I had gone crazy) to try and destroy my chances of even making a living. The psychiatric profession had ruined many lives in America in a masquerader led conspiracy.

They even tried to have me buried alive twice. Just imagine the cruelty of being buried alive or being thrown in a grave with tape over your mouth, and feet tied, and a massive cast iron cover bolted over it to die there over a period of days or weeks. That’s what they tried on me. I have thought about it. But the name of the game for the masqueraders is to kill their victims with the maximum pain and suffering, as prolonged as possible, as they can inflict. Or try to imagine the cruelty of being tied and put into an electric crematorium to be cremated alive. They could prolong that torture to inflict as much pain and suffering as they could. The only way to dissuade such behavior is to spare none of the cruelty and brutality they have done and inflict the same on the masqueraders and other perpetrators. Do to them as they have done. This will act as a deterrent for the future. And of course, the same cruelty with nothing diminished has to be inflicted on Germans in Germany who ordered all this cruelty in the first place.

All this happened in Milwaukee, Wisconsin in the USA. I have had armed policemen come and knock on my door in the middle of the night and wake me up. They just asked some questions such as if I knew anything about a shooting in the neighborhood.  But in each and every case their scared look, or inability to pull the gun out of the holster makes me believe that they were seeing a vision of a threatening angel that dissuaded them from murdering me.  

When the realization of what the intention of the German masqueraders was came to me around the year 2000, and I also figured out what my personal experiences over the previous 19 years in the USA meant, and what brutal high crimes with the utmost cruelty the Germans masqueraders had been committing in the USA, I reached the conclusion that there was absolutely no alternative but to exterminate them, man woman and child.  Since that judgment, I have never changed my mind about it. With the way they continuously trouble me to date and deny me the opportunity to make a decent living, it just reinforces my judgment, even though it does not need any reinforcing. There is absolutely no alternative for all nations but to exterminate the German masqueraders living in their midst.

What the Germans have done in Non-Israelite Nations

While all this was going on in our Israelite nations, soon after World War 2, the Germans developed and maintained a worldwide network of allies to punish peoples who fought against them in both world wars. I was born and raised in one such group that bore the brunt of German wrath. I was born and raised a Sikh in India, and Sikhs had contributed the largest number of soldiers to the British Indian Army than any other ethnic group and fought the Germans in both world wars.   

I will illustrate the German strategy in four contexts in how they carried out their vendetta: in Iraq, Uganda, Israel and India.  

The problems the Germans had with the Iraqis was that the Iraqis occupied their ancient land known as Assyria from which they had been driven out around 612 B.C. They wanted to destroy as many Iraqis as possible. Their strategy was to help a brutal military man from a minority tribe rise to power. Because the strongman would be from a minority community, he would have to maintain power through brutality, by murdering all those who opposed him. They found one such dupe in Saddam Hussein. He kept himself in power by murdering tens of thousands of his people and brutally suppressing them. They then induced him to start a war with Iran in which more than 500,000 Iranians and Iraqis died, and hundreds of thousands were wounded. Then they inveigled him into annexing Kuwait, which brought a coalition of western and Arab nations against him. It ultimately led to his downfall. But the Germans got their revenge against Iraqis for having occupied their ancient land of Assyria.

Their beef against the Ugandans was that they had served in the British African armies and fought against them in World War 2. So, they helped Idi Amin from a minority tribe to come to power who mass murdered more than 300,000 Ugandans to stay in power.  The Germans got their revenge on the Ugandans. 

After the formation of the Jewish state of Israel in 1948, Jews were hunting down Nazi criminals and mass murderers all over the world. The Germans sought revenge. They helped an unscrupulous murderous man named Yasser Arafat rise to power to become the head of a Palestinian terrorist organization the PLO, who committed to using terrorism against the Israelis, and their helpers the Americans and the British globally. The Palestinians murdered two American ambassadors, a candidate for president of the United States, blew up or hijacked airline planes, murdered thousands more in suicide and other bombings over a period of 45 years. Americans were literally terrorized and hunted all over the world and were never assured of safety anywhere in the world.  

I thought the Oslo accords were the last hope that a lasting peace could be achieved. But we learnt that Yasser Arafat never had peace in mind when he negotiated. The Palestinians negotiated as many concessions as they could get. Then it was business as usual in continuing to murder Americans and Jews and seek the destruction of the state of Israel. There was absolutely no chance for peace in any negotiations with the Palestinians. That’s when around 1995-1996 I reached the conclusion that the Palestinians should be exterminated for having participated in a conspiracy with the Germans and having dared to commit high crimes against Americans worldwide. Their subsequent actions have reinforced my decision that the judgment on them is correct. If the Germans had been targeted by some people the way Americans had been targeted by the Palestinians, such people would have been exterminated by the Germans. The Palestinians deserve nothing less from America.

By the way, when I spoke my views against the Palestinians, Yasser Arafat asked “Why haven’t the American Palestinians killed him yet.” The reply was that they had been trying their best with many attempts but had not succeeded. That was Arafat’s way of dealing with those who criticized him and the Palestinians.

The situation was much more complex in India. Indians of all hues had contributed soldiers to the British Indian armies and fought against them in both world wars. But the maximum contributions as a percentage of the population were made by Punjabis, both from what is now part of India, and Pakistan.

After the immediate revenge they got in 1947 with the division of India into India and Pakistan with 500,000 - 800,000 Punjabis, Sikhs, Muslims and Hindus being killed, the Germans were still not satisfied. The German strategy in India and Pakistan then was to make alliances with business leaders. They offered technological help to business men to set up industries based on Indian and Pakistani needs that would enrich them. Most of the leading businessmen in India were the Rajasthan Marwaris, Sindhis, Gujaratis, Parsis and South Indians. The leading businessmen in Pakistan were Sindhis of Pakistan. They helped these groups set up basic industries such as manufacturing hydrogenated oil, cloth and cement mills, sugar manufacturing plants and industries for processing commodities. The price for doing so was to induce the Punjabis of India and Punjabis of Pakistan to fight and kill each other. For this purpose, they used the Sindhis of Pakistan to drum up the issue of Kashmir and induce the Pakistani generals to start a war with India over Kashmir. Since most of the common border between the two countries was in the land of Punjab, bifurcated between the two countries, the Punjabis would have to fight and kill each other.

In India, since Punjabis, particularly Sikhs, constituted much of the army, they induced their ally China to start a war with India. Many Sikhs died in that war with China in 1962. Then the Sindhis of Pakistan, particularly Zulfikar Ali Bhutto induced the Pakistani generals to start a war with India over Kashmir in 1965.  Punjabis from both sides died in that war. Then in the Bangladesh liberation war on 1971, Germany’s Indian allies pulled a masterstroke.  

Sam Manekshaw, a Parsi was the General of the Indian armies and was put in charge of executing the war with Pakistan. In a conspiracy with other Indians, he persuaded Prime Minister Indira Gandhi to give him a free hand in executing the war, which she did. Sam Manekshaw then concentrated all the war effort in Bangladesh and purposely left the Punjab border with Pakistan lightly defended. The aim was to allow the Pakistani Army to literally walk into India all the way to New Delhi and slaughter tens of millions of Punjabis as infidels. However, God intervened, and a brave Indian Second Lieutenant of Punjabi origin named Arun Khetarpal, a tank platoon leader, fighting in the Punjab sector scored kills of a few Pakistani tanks and was himself wounded. He was asked to retreat from the battlefield by his commander, but he refused saying “Sir, my gun is still firing!” He then died in the battle. By the way his name means “Defender or protector of the battlefield.” He lived up to his name to his last breath.  

Arun Khetarpal’s actions stalled the advance of the Pakistani Army, but only temporarily.  Nothing now stood between the Pakistani Army and its march to New Delhi. However, the field commander of the Pakistani Army, Brigadier General Parvez Musharraf (later General and President of Pakistan) refused permission to his army to advance. The reason was that part of his family still lived in the Delhi area in India. God put such a thought into General Musharraf’s mind and intervened to save the Punjabis in India, particularly the Sikhs from becoming victims of genocide. If the Pakistani Army had advanced into India, Sikhs and Hindus would have been massacred as infidels.

Indira Gandhi was not aware of what Sam Manekshaw had done. When she learnt about Manekshaw’s perfidy and realized that the war could have been lost, she punished Manekshaw in her own way by sidelining him. 

However, Indira Gandhi finally did learn later why Manekshaw did what he did in 1971. She learnt that the purpose was to destroy the Sikhs. That is what emboldened her to ‘teach the Sikhs a lesson’ by murdering possibly a hundred thousand of them in the 1984 incidents.

However, this was not the only perfidy committed against the Punjabis by Indians and Pakistanis allied with the Germans. What the German masqueraders did in the USA and British Commonwealth nations; their Indian allies did to the Punjabis, but particularly the Sikhs in India. They discriminated against them and impoverished them in every possible way. Since the Sikhs are a tiny minority in India, constituting only about 1.7% of India’s population, with the central government controlling industrialization, they kept Punjab from being industrialized. The entire defense and heavy industries were concentrated in South, Eastern and Western India. Most chemical industry was concentrated in Gujarat. Punjab had nothing but agriculture. 

Whenever soldiers were to be sent, such as to Sri Lanka on a peace-keeping mission to prevent fighting between the Tamils and Sinhalese, always Sikh generals and soldiers were put in charge to make them hated, and also die in battle. 

Then there were the Banias (whose ethnic origins are from Rajasthan) and Bhapas (whose ethnic origins are from Sindh in Pakistan) who live in Punjab who conspired to deprive other Sikhs), of even small retail and other businesses. This was easy for them to do because all their suppliers for their retail businesses were the industrialists who were already German allies and committed to discriminating against the Sikhs. Because even the retail industry and commodity processing industries in Punjab were controlled by the non-Punjabi Banias and Bhapas, they could charge higher discriminatory prices to the other Sikhs, thus further impoverishing them.

The first computer chip manufacturing plant in India was set up in Punjab with foreign collaboration. But the city of Bangaluru was a rival and had also set up a computer chip manufacturing plant. With their Punjabi allies, the other Indians orchestrated the destruction of the Punjabi plant by blowing it up. Since they controlled the insurance industry, they continued to stall the insurance claim for many years so that the Punjabi plant could never be rebuilt. With such tactics, they continued to prevent Punjab from being industrialized and develop a technically trained work force. 

The Germans had also shared their technology with these non-Punjabi groups living in Punjab that enabled them to convey threats electronically, as they had been doing in the USA and Britain since the very early 1960s. With threats they forced Punjabis to get out of businesses that competed against them and forced the most beautiful Sikh and Punjabi women to marry them. The industrial tycoons who employed Punjabi Sikhs, sent them on assignments out of town while they visited their factories and forcibly committed adultery with the beautiful wives of the Sikhs. What the German masqueraders carried out with a vengeance in America and Britain, the Banias did to the Sikhs in Punjab: control their population growth as much as they could (though not too successful in this as the Sikhs were a majority in Punjab) and darken them racially.
 
The attempts that was made by German masqueraders and their allies in the USA and Britain to murder them by poisoning them or any other means were also made in India, with the Sikhs and Hindu Sainis in high places such as top retired generals (one example is Air Chief Marshal Arjan Singh) and leading politicians. These attempts were carried out. But as God intervened in the USA to prevent such attempts from succeeding, He intervened also in India to prevent such attempts against the Sikhs from succeeding.

There was regular periodic violence every few years against Sikhs in Bengal, South India and Mumbai. Sikhs were attacked and murders were committed. Sikhs had to be regularly on guard and defended themselves with swords and whatever other weapons they had. The reason for the violence was to gain financial rewards from the big Indian industrialists in collusion with the Germans, and to force them to give up their businesses. 

When I was in India, attempts started being made on my life from the age of ten, because I had shown academic potential. Because I belonged to a lower middle-class family, no one would have cared if I died, as the matter could be easily hushed up with the police and any investigation quashed. The Banias orchestrated these numerous attempts though a variety of different people made the attempts to gain financial advantage. The big industrialists (the Modis, Birlas and others) in collusion with the Banias financially rewarded those who made the attempts on my life, by either helping them to start businesses, or going to the USA for higher studies and then getting decent jobs all their lives while in the USA. After I came to the USA, Gujaratis and Palestinians made many attempts on my life, besides masqueraders and other Americans.

I am certain that as attempts were made on my life, attempts would have been made on the lives of others in Punjab. Laborers and agricultural servants from Uttar Pradesh who worked in Punjab were recruited for this purpose. They succeeded in committing a few murders. The Banias also created an atmosphere of religious hatred for the Sikhs in Punjab.
 
Sikhs were harassed at every turn such as Sikh taxi drivers traveling from Punjab to Delhi being stopped in Haryana and asked to pay bribes to be allowed to pass through with their passengers, or being detained at airports for a few hours in order to extract bribes for clearing their bags through customs, or deliberately making mistakes in passports in order to extract bribes when they have to engage in international travel. I have firsthand experience in all this as a victim.

The large industrialists discriminated against Punjabis, particularly Sikhs in giving them jobs. If some of them obtained jobs because of their engineering and scientific abilities, they were asked to train Marwari and other engineers. After they had trained these men, they were fired from their jobs and replaced by the men they had trained. In a personal example, I was called to Jaipur Rajasthan for an interview for an engineering job. I spent two full days in travel and two full days there in the hot baking temperatures of Jaipur, but except for seeing the receptionist I did not talk to anyone. No one came to talk to us. We were not offered even a soft drink or a cup of tea, except a glass of water one day by the receptionist. I came back after two days, having traveled and stayed in Jaipur at my own expense. Of course, since then I have experienced similar things at the hands of German masqueraders in America. That’s when I realized what this treatment by the Birlas meant.

The hand of Indian allies of the Germans was heavy against Punjabi, particularly Sikh, Chemical engineers and chemistry majors. The purpose was to prevent Punjab from ever developing a chemical industry that could be used in military weapons manufacture. I graduated with a chemical engineering degree from Indian Institute of Technology, Delhi. 

I was a Ph.D. student in marketing and international business at Northwestern University. I believe the famous retired Stanford professor of marketing V. Srinivasan came specifically to Northwestern University in 1983 to prevail on professors there to get me out of the program. I was not allowed to complete my PhD because of such activities of South Indians in America, in addition to my views on free trade.

Gradually they deprived the Punjabis, but particularly the Sikhs, of gaining employment even in the armed services. Their numbers have dwindled considerably.

Then they trapped Sikh generals with perhaps small ‘bribes’ or other incentives so that they could then be accused of corruption and court marshaled. This was practiced against Sikhs in other jobs as well. One such general Shahbeg Singh joined up with Bhindranwale to seek revenge for this treatment.

God’s Judgment on the Banias

Because of all the attempts made on my life and forcing me to live in poverty virtually my entire life, and what they had done to Americans, by 2000 - 2001 I had reached the conclusion that the German masqueraders deserved nothing less than to be exterminated, man woman and child. As I thought about all this and realized what the Sikhs had been subjected to, I thought about the most appropriate punishment on the Indians allied with the Germans. I reached the conclusion around 2001 - 2002 that the most appropriate judgment for conspiring to subject the Punjabis, but particularly the Sikhs to genocide and nearly succeeding in 1971 except for God’s intervention, is to kill one third of the populations of the five south Indian states of Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh and Telengana; one third of the populations of the states of Gujarat, Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, Bengal and Maharashtra, as well as the Banias and Bhapas. People from the other states will be dealt with according to their crimes, but not to the extent of having one-third of their populations destroyed.  Again, this was the judgment I had been thinking about in 2001-2002.

When I was dwelling on these thoughts, then I believe in 2005 I received one of my messages from God delivered by an angel while I was walking around at home in the middle of the day. The message was “The Banias are to be exterminated.” (For all messages of God delivered by angels and proof, please read or download my booklet “God’s Messages Delivered Through Angels” available free of charge on my web site www.ChurchofGodMessage.com).

I was absolutely stunned by this message. I was not aware of the extent of the crimes committed by the Banias. I thought the crimes against Sikhs were committed by Hindus in general and not mainly by the Banias. My thoughts were also that only the German masqueraders living in Israelite countries and the Palestinians should be totally exterminated, man woman and child. Exterminating the Banias was far from my mind.  

But since then I have had more than a decade to think about God’s judgment delivered to me. At that time, I had not known the extent of the wickedness committed by the Banias against the Sikhs. I looked at the characteristics of the Banias in relation to the Sikhs. I realized then that out of all the Hindus, they were the ones using threats against the Sikhs, delivered electronically, to force them to do things against their will. The glaring fact is also that they live among the Sikhs. That’s why they could be so effective in delivering threats to the Sikhs electronically. They have discriminated against the Sikhs in a conspiracy with the Germans and carried out their discrimination clandestinely, systematically and thoroughly with devastating results for the Sikhs. They have used threats to prevent Sikhs, particularly the handsome and very intelligent ones such as brilliant college professors from marrying in order to control the Sikh population in general, and the intelligent ones in particular. I know this from examples I have witnessed such as a college professor at IIT Delhi and a former bank manager at Punjab National Bank, and from my personal example as well. They have forced the most beautiful Sikh and Punjabi women, and the highly educated ones to marry them with threats. They have incited violence and murder in Punjab through inflammatory journalism. They and their allies have murdered our chief ministers, who are the heads of government in the states in India (the equivalent of state governors in the USA).

They thoroughly impoverished the Sikhs and enriched themselves fabulously at their expense. They initiated and made bribery and corruption a way of life in Punjab. Most Punjabis, particularly Sikhs (excluding the Bhapas) did not practice the way of bribery and corruption in general. But when a particular ethnic group uses it to gain advantage, others are forced to fall in line in order not to be deprived of everything.  

And the worst of it all was that they taunted Sikhs by coining the epithet “All Sikhs go insane at 12.00 o’clock.” Such epithets are highly offensive to any people. But the Germans had a way of labeling those people who opposed them in World War II as retarded. They have been doing it to the Norwegians and their stooges the Banias did it to the Sikhs. And of course, the Banias and the Rajasthan Marwaris were behind all the attempts to murder me by offering financial incentives in India because I had shown some academic potential. And just as the German masqueraders poured filth on Israelites in America literally and by contaminating food, the Banias did it in India to the Sikhs by adulterating food. 

I have lived through all this time and observed the Banias’ rise to power from the early 1960s when their alliance with the Germans began. They were petty shopkeepers then eking out a living. But then as more industrial products became available, the sources of supply were the big industrialists who discriminated against all others and gave them favorable treatment. So it was not any inherent intelligence of the Banias or the Marwaris that made them rich. But ill-gotten success went to their heads and they committed horrible crimes. That’s why God has pronounced His judgment on the Banias.   

When I took a long hard look at these characteristics of the Banias and how they treated Sikhs in a German led conspiracy, I realized how righteous God’s judgment on the Banias was. And by passing this judgment, God also confirmed my judgment on the German masqueraders. My judgment on other Indians is less severe, hence appropriate.

Of course, the judgment has to be somewhat modified as there have been intermarriages between the Banias and Sikhs and other Punjabis. 

Incidentally, the three peoples that I have said should be exterminated have made the most attempts on my life: the German masqueraders, the Banias, and the Palestinians. The only other group that has made many attempts on my life is the Gujaratis. But they have been excluded from such harsh judgment because they don’t live among the Sikhs.

However, Bengalis and Gujaratis need special mention because they have been the darlings of the Germans. The reason is that they helped Hitler’s war effort during WW 2. The Bengali Subhas Chandra Bose with his Indian National Army in collaboration with Hitler tried to fight the British. Gandhi in collusion with the Germans spearheaded the Quit India Movement during WW2 and made the war effort as difficult as he could.

After India’s independence, Gujaratis and Bengalis obtained all the help they could from German masqueraders in immigrating to the USA and were able to set up businesses. Bengalis were favored in employment in India, and also got scholarships to study in the USA and get good jobs afterwards. Gujaratis own most of the motels in the USA. For more than 25 years, they have made my life very miserable whenever I have traveled and had to stay in one of their motels. Most of them make sure that I am unable to get good sleep at night, and they have also made attempts on my life by poisoning my food. I am certain they also participated in murders of Americans of Israelite descent in America. Because they have become rich due to these ill-gotten gains, they like other Indians have been marrying the best educated Punjabi and Sikh women in an attempt to reduce the general level of intelligence among the Sikhs and Punjabis. 

Judgment on how various people should be dealt with who have allied themselves with the Germans and German masqueraders and have come to America, British Commonwealth nations and France - because the masqueraders in each of the countries controlled the immigration process - has to be a two-track process. In cases where whole groups of people were allied with the Germans, such as the Gujaratis, South Indians, Marwaris, Bengalis, Banias, Palestinians and Chinese etc., have to be dealt with collectively as a group. In other cases, the nations or groups of people who were not allied with the Germans, but individuals came to the USA, British Commonwealth nations and France after committing crimes against Americans and the British in their own countries, or fully collaborated with the masqueraders after coming to the USA have to be dealt with as individuals. My judgment on the groups that colluded with the Germans is that no one from those groups living in our countries will go back to their home countries alive. They have come to our countries and have continued working with the masqueraders to enrich themselves and commit crimes. All from that group collectively will be exterminated man, woman and child. Individuals from groups or nations that had not colluded with the Germans will be dealt with individually. They and their families will be exterminated: man, woman and child.

This judgment is very appropriate because the judgment on the German masqueraders in our countries is also that they should be exterminated: man, woman and child.

Just imagine, if Sikhs got together and threatened the CEOs of Indian Oil Corporation, Reliance, Tata Motors, TCS, Cognizant, WIPRO, Infosys and HCL Technologies, and forced them to install Sikhs as CEOs of all these companies, who then filled them at the top, middle levels of management and even skilled workers with Sikhs, how would Indians react? They would exterminate the Sikhs for having the gall to threaten them and take over the companies. 

Now consider the situation in the USA. With the help of German masqueraders, Indians have literally taken over some of the most valued American companies, which include Microsoft and Google. American workers have been replaced by tens of thousands of Indians and others allied with the German masqueraders in each of these companies. They discriminate against non-German-origin Americans, Sikhs and others in hiring as managers and employees. Literally, millions of American IT workers have lost their jobs to Indian IT workers. Without Global Crossing building the IT infrastructure (with connivance of masqueraders) by laying fiber optic cables in the oceans, the Indian IT revolution would not have been possible to the extent it has taken place. Threats were also employed in giving contracts to Indian IT companies, or German masquerader managers deliberately made decisions against American workers in favor of Indian workers. Thus, hundreds of billions of dollars of American and British wealth has been siphoned off to India. And that siphoning-off of American wealth is still maintained with threats. 

[bookmark: _GoBack]Now Facebook CEO Mark Zuckerberg is being pressured to resign so that Indians can take over Facebook. Also reports of a massive sexual harassment culture, such as the recent one in google are manufactured, to get rid of American employees at the top and replace them with masquerader, Indian or other employees. This process is not limited to the IT industry only. Wherever gains can be made with threats, the attempts are being made. 

It is exhilarating for Indians to get these high-paying jobs. Germans and German masqueraders are happy to gain valuable allies globally, who will support them totally in the event of a war, by sabotaging American war efforts and any other way possible. Germans have no doubt about it, and we have no doubt about it either. 

Since all these people are totally reliable allies of the German masqueraders against non-German-origin Americans, who have helped them become fabulously wealthy, beyond their wildest dreams, they deserve nothing less than what the German masqueraders deserve. They deserve to be exterminated: man, woman and child.  
  
Atrocities Committed Against Americans and the British in India

The German-Indian conspiracy was much deeper than the details provided so far. For further details we need to go back to the Vietnam War era. Due to the Vietnam War many Americans, perhaps in the hundreds of thousands, ended up In India during the late 1960s and 1970s. Among them would have been people of British descent as well as many German masqueraders. The German-led conspiracy with Indians to destroy people of British descent as well as the Sikhs and Punjabis was already in full swing since the early 1960s.

The German masqueraders would have identified Americans of British and other non-German European descent to their Indian allies to target them for murder and every other possible form of humiliation. Many of these innocent Americans were murdered. It was orchestrated mainly by the Marwari businessmen of Rajasthan. I also believe the denizens of the dark palaces of Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh were deeply involved in this conspiracy. There is also no doubt that other top business leaders such as the Tatas, other Parsis, Modis and other Indian businessmen from most states were involved in this heinous crime. Some of them were surely cremated alive in electric crematoriums as I heard of the existence of such crematoriums in India. Burning people alive is a German penchant, which is evident today in the deeds of ISIS which I believe is another German creation. Of course, the benefit for all those who murdered or humiliated these innocent Americans was fabulous financial rewards. Many became rich in India with the help of the Marwaris and other businessmen. One prime example is Laloo Prasad Yadav, former Chief Minister of Bihar state. Others got an opportunity to come to the USA to study or set up businesses. They became rich in the USA and Britain.

After coming to the USA, Indians have remained steadfast allies of German masqueraders. They have participated in medical murders, discriminated against Americans of non-German descent and Sikhs in employment opportunities in the USA and continue to use threats against Sikhs in the USA. I am a witness to that because my relatives have been suffering as a result of these activities.

Some single British citizens remained in India after British colonial rule ended in August 1947. I believe many of them were murdered as an ‘act of vengeance’ for ruling India. But nobody would have participated in such murders if there had been no financial incentives offered by Indian businessmen allied with the Germans. The Indian businessmen had become rich with German help.

Besides Americans of non-German descent being murdered, other unfortunate Americans were humiliated in many other ways. Women were subjected to rapes and forced to have sex against their will. Other women were virtually enslaved and forced to marry Indians against their will. We heard of an American woman being forced to marry a rickshaw puller. I don’t know if the marriage lasted because there was a hue and cry over it.  But Americans should understand the mindset of the Marwaris and the Madhya Pradeshi and Rajasthani princes because of such vile deeds. They did everything in their power to murder such Americans or any British they found in India, or humiliate them in as degrading and contemptuous a manner as possible, cruelly inflicting as much pain and suffering as they could, the hallmark of the Germans. It’s possible some may have been tortured before being murdered.  

By committing these crimes Indians have demonstrated a poor understanding of history. They perhaps did not know that the American people are not the same as the British people. They thought they were getting their vengeance against the British for ruling over them. But they committed high crimes against innocent Americans. Both Americans and the British are descendants of the patriarch Joseph of the Bible. But the British are descended from Joseph’s younger son Ephraim whereas Americans are descended from his older son Manasseh. Indians also ought to have considered that the Americans were never favorably inclined towards colonialism, because they had to fight a war of independence themselves to get rid of British colonialism. They ignored this reality of relatively recent history. But because of their greed for material gain and fabulous riches they made an unholy alliance with the Germans. They took bribes to murder innocent Americans in cruel and horrible ways. 

These Indians should have stopped to ask themselves why the Germans were targeting the Punjabis in India and Pakistan and the Sikhs in particular. They would have realized that the reason was having fought against them in both world wars. But then all these Indians would have realized that they too were part of the British Indian armies and fought against the Germans. In targeting the Punjabis, the Germans succeeded in dividing Indians and Pakistanis of various ethnic groups against each other and got their revenge on all. And they got to reward their Indian allies through American and British wealth with the help of German masqueraders. Such is the diabolical cunning craftiness of the god of the Germans, Satan the devil.

But greed and dreams of riches and literally controlling the entire country got the better of all these Indian groups. They did become rich beyond their wildest dreams. Since the German masqueraders controlled the visa process in American embassies, many individuals got an opportunity to come to the USA to study or set up businesses. They became rich in the USA and Britain. The princes of Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh have been able to maintain their fabulous wealth by turning their palaces into tourist resorts which German masqueraders from around the world visit in large numbers in the millions annually, spending billions of dollars. I know from personal experience that German masqueraders have been vacationing in these princely resorts for decades. They then tell positive tales of their experiences so that others can be induced to visit them. It has been a fabulous reward for committing the most gruesome atrocities against Americans. 

With this background, all sides understand that the fight in India is no longer all Indians against the Sikhs. Most Indians chose the side of the Germans nearly 60 years ago. They have committed high crimes, including attempts at genocide of Sikhs and Punjabis, in alliance with them and have been very handsomely rewarded for their efforts. The Germans lost two world wars to the British and Americans because of their numerical superiority. This time around they have planned not to be let down by numerical inferiority. They have an alliance with 1.4 billion Chinese, 1.2 billion Indians, a significant number of Muslims, 83 million Germans and over 200 million German masqueraders living in America, British Commonwealth countries and the rest of the world. With the rest of the world being neutral, this is a very unequal fight in terms of numbers. Germans have been planning this for the past 60 years. Sikhs have no choice in the matter. War will be forced on them as they are a primary target. But they will be glad to fight on the side of the USA, British Commonwealth nations and the Jewish state of Israel. 

Racial Background of North Indians

Till recently, the Sikhs were the targets of virtually all Indians. But since God gave His judgment on the Banias in 2005, for me there has been a greater understanding of the racial background of North Indians, including Pakistanis and Afghanis. For a full explanations with proofs, please read my booklet “India in Bible prophecy”, available free at my website www.ChurchofGodMessage.com. 

Very briefly, here is the racial background of North Indians, Pakistanis and Afghans. The original settlers of India were the descendants of Cush (a black man) the son of Ham the son of Noah (most probably the descendants of Raamah the son of Cush). They were the Kshatriyas, Shudras and Vaishyas. The Rajputs and Gujaratis are the descendants of Phut the son of Ham, and the Dravidians are the descendants of Raamah’s brother Seba. Mixed with all of them in their lands were the priestly Brahmins whose ancestor was Arphaxad, a white man.

Then in 722-721 BCE, the Assyrians (the ancestors of the modern Germans) invaded and conquered the ten-tribed northern kingdom of ancient Israel known as the House of Israel, took them as slaves and deported them from their land. After a century, these former slaves ranged far and wide in the steppes of Eurasia, including in northwest and north India. Many of them mixed among the people of the lands they lived in. Since they were racially white and better educated, they married mainly among the Brahmins and Kshatriyas in North India.

Those that married and mixed with the people they lived with, settled down among them. Those that did not racially mix later migrated to the British Isles and the countries of northwest Europe. These Israelites thus married among the Brahmins and Kshatriyas of North India, Pakistan and the Afghans. Thus, Punjabis, Sindhis, Bhapas, all Pakistanis and Afghans are all descendants of these Israelites mixed with the local populations. 

The Southern Kingdom of ancient Israel known the House of Judah (or Jews, as the word Jew is just a short form of Jude) was later defeated by Nebuchadnezzar, and the Jews removed from their land. A number of them settled in North India. These white Jews also married among the local populations. The Sainis, Sonis, Sawhneys and Sahnis are the descendants of those Jews. These names are derived from the word Sion, which is a name for Jerusalem, as a person from Sion would be pronounced as a Sionee, which in English could be spelled as Saini etc. This was the very first message delivered to me by an angel, that the Sainis are Jews. 

Next came Alexander’s invasion. Some of his soldiers also settled in India and intermarried with the north Indians. Their descendants are known as Jutts in Punjab and Jats in Haryana. The word Jutt or Jat is just a shortened form of Jude. Hence the Jutts are also Jews, but descended from Judah’s son Zarah, whereas the Sainis are descendants of Judah’s son Pharez.

Muslims who later came with Babar’s invasion are also descendants of the Israelites of the northern Kingdom, the House of Israel, who had settled in central Asia and married among the local populace. 

This information changes the alignments considerably. The Sikhs are no longer alone. The entire population of Pakistan, and the Indian states of Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh (except the Rajputs), Kashmir, Uttaranchal Pradesh and western Uttar Pradesh (except the Banias) are thus all descendants of the ancient Israelites racially mixed with the previous local populace. The Sindhis in India are also descendants of the racially mixed ancient Israelites. The Sindhis in India, after the creation of Pakistan, have lived mainly in the states of Gujarat, Maharashtra, Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh. They have developed loyalties with those peoples. It will be interesting to watch which side they join in the event of a war. It will probably be an individual decision.

Should Sikhs Forgive and Forget

Now I can begin addressing the question: should Sikhs forgive and forget? The answer should be clear. I DO NOT NEED TO MAKE THAT DECISION! God Almighty has already made that decision when He delivered His judgment on the Banias. The reason for putting between 250 - 300 million to death is targeting the Sikhs for genocide in a conspiracy with the Germans, committing crimes against Americans and the British in India, and then coming to America and Britain and committing crimes against them again. These Indians dared to touch American and British women. They had the audacity to humiliate them, and the nerve to murder them in gruesome ways. Based on God’s judgment they will pay for their high crimes. If they had dared to touch German women and humiliated them, they know that they would have been brutalized by the Germans. Americans and the British should do no less.

But remember, we are not interested in attacking other Indian states. This judgment is predicated on Indians and the Chinese in collusion with the Germans attacking us first.

Sikhs also have to deal with another issue. Many Jats and other Hindus murdered Sikhs; and Punjabis, including Sikhs, participated in murders of Americans and the British in India. These murderers will be dealt with individually. Each individual will pay for his or her crime, but there will be no punishment on families or groups as a whole.

Has the Attitude of Indians Towards Sikhs and Americans Changed 

I made my judgment against the German masqueraders in 2,000 - 2,001. God confirmed that judgment when He delivered His judgment against the Banias in 2005. What has been the attitude of Indians against the Sikhs, Americans and the British since then?

German Stooges in India

First of all, India has many German stooges who regularly criticize America and Britain. A prime example is Indian Member of Parliament, Shashi Tharoor. He recently participated in a debate at Oxford University on the subject “Does Britain owe reparations to former colonies?” He also made extremely witty but highly acerbic comments at that debate and demonstrated a total lack of understanding of economic reality. Then he penned a book titled “An Era of Darkness: The British Empire in India.” The book is full of lies from the beginning to the end to malign the British. 

This debate was organized because Germans were forced to address the question of looting Jewish treasures and wealth during World War 2 and compensate the families.  In order to get back at the British, German masqueraders in Britain organize such debates. Then German stooges such as Shashi Tharoor go into overdrive. Someone came up with a figure of $3 trillion in compensation from the British to former colonies, and Shashi Tharoor quoted it in his book. I researched the issue thoroughly for over a year and wrote my own book titled “Britain Does not Owe Reparations to Its Former Colonies” debunking all the arguments and exposing Shashi Tharoor’s lies. I also showed that with $120 billion of annual IT exports from India to the USA and Britain, and $20 billion of annual remittances from the USA and British Commonwealth countries to India, the British and American people have more than compensated India for their colonial rule. Of course, someone then recalculates the numbers and states that Britain owes $47 trillion in compensation to India for colonial rule.

Such accusations have been going on ever since the late 1960s and 1970s. Indians scapegoated the CIA for interfering in its internal affairs, for any and everything, including even when the price of onions went up. This was done to turn the Indian public against the Americans and the British and demonize them to justify the unspeakable crimes and horrible murders being committed against them in India. Such demonizing continues even today.

Attempts at Mass Murder Still Continue 

Have the attempts at mass murdering Sikhs stopped? Not in the least. 

My distrust of prime minister Modi grew during the June-August 2017 Doklam affair between India and China on the Bhutan border. This may have seemed like another one of China’s off and on aggressive moves on the India-China border, like in the South China Sea to claim others’ territory as their own, but my view is that the motives in this case were different. 

Modi has visited China often to meet the Chinese president Xi Jinping. Their scheme was to start border skirmishes far away from Punjab, then send in 50,000 Sikh and other Punjabis in the army to the border to fight the Chinese and have them all killed there. They would not be given the requisite military material to fight the war and would all be murdered. 

When I got wind of the plan, I suggested that the Sikh and Punjabi soldiers should simply refuse to fight. Unless Punjabis are sent only in proportion to their representation in the Indian armed services, we should refuse to fight. Just come back home and then if possible, at the earliest opportunity attack Gujarat and kill as many Gujaratis as possible for victimizing us. 

If they send Punjabis to the border with officers from other states of India and they force the soldiers to fight, then kill the officers and return home. The only land the defense of which we should be primarily concerned with is greater Punjab. There is no reason for us to die defending areas in Assam, or the Indo-China-Bhutan border or anywhere else. The Doklam disturbance ended immediately when Modi knew that his evil plan had been effectively thwarted.

Modi regularly continues to visit China and meet with Xi Jinping on other occasions as well. We know the schemes they are hatching to attack and conquer Greater Punjab, consisting of Pakistan, Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Kashmir, Uttaranchal Pradesh and Western Uttar Pradesh states of India. All this conquest is being planned in collusion with the Germans. 

Clearly God’s judgment on the Banias and based on that the judgments I have made on other Indian peoples are fully justified. 

Economic Impoverishment Continues Unabated

Rest of India has treated the Greater Punjab area as an economic colony as in the days of British rule. All defense, chemical, heavy industry and consumer goods manufacturing is located in other parts of the country, whereas Greater Punjab has been a good market for them to exploit. Thus, for the past 71 years since India’s independence, Greater Punjab has been exploited as an economic colony by the rest of India. Though some industry has been located now, Greater Punjab still lags far behind the rest of India. The Green Revolution resulting in tremendous increases in agricultural productivity kept the Sikhs and other Punjabis afloat and able to survive. 

However, that has changed recently. The central government of Modi controls procurement prices for the central government stocks of grains and other edibles. They also have control over agricultural inputs such as fertilizer prices. The Modi government has squeezed the farmers over the past four years resulting in bankruptcies of many of them, with many committing suicide. The impoverishment of the Greater Punjab area continues unabated.

The public sector Punjab National Bank has most of its operations in the Greater Punjab area. It is controlled entirely by the Banias. They have followed the German method in controlling it. Once one of their men gets into a top position, then he recruits and promotes Banias only. That’s how they get to control many institutions. Besides the banking sector being made virtually the private piggy bank of Gujarat (Modi’s home state) and South Indian states, looting of Punjab National Bank has been the severest. The bank now has large non-performing assets and has been involved in massive ponzi loan scheme scandals. Looting of other banks also continues.

Efforts to Divide Sikhs Continue

Sikhs are still beaten up and harassed in some parts of the country. Efforts to divide them for political gains as Indira Gandhi did by setting up Jarnail Singh Bhindranwale still continue. Arvind Kejriwal, the current Chief Minister of Delhi state set up his Aam Adami Party to divide the Congress Party vote. However, his motive in Punjab state was to divide the Sikh vote and to tell the Sikhs in his party to give up activism for Sikh causes. His attempts, however, have not been successful as his game was discovered.

Proposed Solution 

Because of these experiences by the Sikhs and the Punjabis, I have advocated the creation of a new country to be named Punjab from the areas described as Greater Punjab, so that we are no longer an economic colony of the rest of India. We will build our own industries and become self-sufficient in all manufacturing, including defense manufacturing. We will invite collaboration with American, Canadian and all non-German European firms in all industries with the understanding that they set up manufacturing industries for export as well so that Punjab can pay for the imports required for various industrial projects. The goal is to have free and fair reciprocal trade. This should result in replacing China as a major exporter for the USA, Canada and Europe. The U.S. will no longer need to bother about a trade war with China. The goal within 5 years for the USA should be virtually zero trade with China.

The Information Technology (IT) industry was my idea which was stolen from me by destroying my business. Since the largest Indian IT firms have rewarded those who made attempts on my life, they have committed crimes in the USA. I will be preparing to file a law suit in the U.S. courts to confiscate their U.S. assets. Then we will transfer their IT contracts to companies in Greater Punjab. 

These moves are sure to evoke a strong response from China and India. However, we have to look out for our own interests, and not remain a colony of the rest of India for another 50 years.

Conclusion 

The judgments I have made about various Indian ethnic groups are based on the treatment of Sikhs and other Punjabis as described. I have written about these judgments on my web site in my booklet titled “God’s Messages Delivered Through Angels.” It is available free of charge to read online or download at my web site www.ChurchofGodMessage.com.

So, to answer the question: Should Sikhs Forgive and Forget? The answer is no!! That is not my judgment. God has given us His judgment in this matter. He has decided that the Banias should be exterminated. Since that judgment delivered in 2005, nothing has changed. Attempts to commit Sikh genocide still continue to be made. Germans never stop these attempts, and they will not let their allies stop them either. Now the Modi government is involving China in these efforts.

Attempts at economic impoverishment of Punjabis and Sikhs still continue.  

However, Sikhs and the Punjabis are not going to attack the rest of India. It is the rest of India in collaboration with China and Germany that will attack Greater Punjab to slaughter and enslave us. We have no choice but to defend ourselves. In this paper, I have described how we will treat Indians in the other states in the process of defending ourselves and looking after our own interests.
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Recently an issue was raised by some friends on Facebook about the 1984 riots in New 


Delhi and the killing of about 3,000 Sikhs. The discussion was about Sikhs 


being a 


forgiving people, and since the incident occurred more than 34 years ago, Sikhs should 


forgive and forget. Being a former Sikh, whose family is all Sikh from father’s side and 


Hindu from mother’s side but who converted to Christianity more than 45 


years ago, I 


would like to address the issue of Sikh forgiveness and forgetting, and whether God has 


any say in the matter.


 


 


First, let me provide the narrative that passes for the accepted and ‘official’ version of 


causes and the events that took place in


 


1984, leading to the massacre of innocent 


Sikhs in Delhi, the capital of India.


 


 


Most of the Sikhs live in the Punjab state in India. During the early 1980s Punjab state 


had become violent due to the demands for a separate state (the Sikh party known as 


t


he Akali Dal maintained that the demand was for autonomy and not for a separate Sikh 


state to be known as Khalistan) by an armed movement of a small section of the Sikhs, 


led by Jarnail Singh Bhindranwale. Bhindranwale’s followers had murdered about 165 


Hi


ndus and Nirankari Sikhs (a sect of the Sikhs), and about 40 Sikhs opposed to 


Bhindranwale’s movement. It is estimated that total of more than 400 had died in the 


violent incidents with nearly 1,200 injured.


 


 


The holiest of Sikh shrines is the Golden Templ


e (known as Harmandir Sahib) in 


Amritsar, Punjab, India. In July 1982, the President of the Akali Dal invited 


Bhindranwale to take up residence in the Golden Temple Complex with some of his 


followers in order to escape arrest, as the authorities would be r


eluctant to enter a 


sacred place with arms. Later Bhindranwale hoarded arms in the complex and made it 


his headquarters. The practice of his followers then was to commit murders and other 


acts of violence and flee to the sacred Temple complex to evade arre


st.


 


 


The situation could no longer be tolerated by the Indian government. Prime Minister 


Indira Gandhi launched Operation Blue Star in which the Indian military between June 1 


and 8, 1984, attacked Bhindranwale and militants with him in the Harmandir compl


ex, 


including one former general Shahbeg Singh. Bhindranwale and many of the militants 


were killed, along with civilians who had been in the complex for worship, or as 


employees. According to official figures, the Indian army casualties were 92 dead and 


28


7 injured. According to the government issued


 


White Paper,


 


554 militants and 


civilians died and 121 were injured.


 


 


 


According to Khushwant Singh (


A History of the Sikhs


, Vol 2, p. 364), Indira Gandhi’s 


son Rajiv Gandhi put the army deaths at over 700 (whic


h he later retracted). Most eye


-


witness accounts put the civilian and militant dead at between 1,500 


-


 


5000, including 
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